50896-52

VOL 284 PAGE 309

9944

BY-LAWS OF THE WHITE ROCK RANCHETTES PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION

ARTICLE I. Name and Location of Association.

The name of this Association is the WHITE ROCK RANCHETTES
PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION. Its principal office is located at
63970 Sunset Drive, Bend, Oregon 97701.

ARTICLE II. Definitions.

The following terms when used herein shall have the following meanings unless a different meaning is plainly required by the context:

- 1.1 All terms defined in the White Rock Ranchettes Declaration shall be so defined herein.
- 1.2 "White Rock Ranchettes Declaration" shall be that instrument filed ______, 1978, in Volume _____, Page _____, Deed Records, Deschutes County, Oregon.

ARTICLE III. Membership

Members of the Association shall be every owner in The White Rock Ranchettes. There shall be no other qualification for membership. Membership shall terminate upon the transfer of a fee simple title to a lot or the contract purchaser's interest by a contract purchaser.

ARTICLE IV. Meeting of Members.

4.1 Place of Meetings. Meetings of the members shall be held at the principal office or place of business of the Association or at such suitable place convenient to the members as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

- 4.2 Annual Meetings. The annual meetings of the members shall be held on the second Monday in June of each year at 10:00 a.m.
- 4.3 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the members may be called at any time by the Chairman of the Board of Directors upon resolution by the Board of Directors or written request of at least 25 per cent of the members.
- Mail, at least 15 but not more than 60 days prior to a meeting, a notice of each annual or special meeting scating the purpose of the meeting and the time and place of the meeting to each member at the address of the member in the records of the Association, or the address supplied by such member to the Association for the purpose of notice.
 - 4.5 Quorum. Except as hereinafter provided, the presence sither in person or by proxy of members entitled to cast at least 29 per cent of the total votes of the Association shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at all meetings. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at such meeting, the members entitled to vote there on shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time without notice, other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as set forth above shall be present or be represented.
 - 4.6 Voting. At every meeting of the members each member present, whether in person or by proxy, shall have the right to cast one vote for each lot owned by such person. Fractional voting will be allowed for those lots having multiple ownership. If a majority of the owners of such lot cannot ag ee the vote for such lot will be counted fractionally.

4.7 Proxies. A member may vote in person or by proxy executed in writing and filed with the Secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically terminate upon termination of membershif.

ARTICLE V. Board of Directors.

- 5.1 Number and Qualifications. The affairs of the Association shall be governed by a Board of Directors composed of three persons. Directors must be members of the Association.
- 5.2 Term. The directors on the initial Board shall serve until the first annual meeting (with the right to run for reelection). At the first annual meeting the membership shall elect three directors for three-year terms, two directors for two-year terms, 252 two directors for a one-year term, with all terms thereafter being for three years when filling vacancies caused by expiration of terms.
- 5.3 Vacancies. Vacancies in the Board of Directors shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining Directors. The remaining term of the vacancy filled shall be served by the Director so elected.
- 5.4 Removal of Directors. Directors may be removed from office before their terms expire by a majority vote of all members, whether voting by proxy or in person, at a special meeting called for the purpose of such removal or at a general THE PARTY OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PARTY OF TH
- 5.5 Compensation. No director shall recive any compensation for any service he may render to the Association as a

Vol. 284 MGE 312

director. However, any director may be reimbursed for his actual expenses which are incurred in the performance of his duties as a director or may receive compensation for services to the Association in a capacity other than as a director.

5.6 Manner of Election. Prospective directors will run for a specific vacancy. After nominations from the floor at the annual meeting or by a nominating committee appointed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, a secret written ballot will be taken of all members or their proxies for each vacancy. Cumulative voting is not permitted. The person receiving the most votes for each vacancy shall be elected.

ARTICLE V. Meetings of the Board of Directors.

of members, the Directors elected at such meeting and those holding over shall hold a meeting for the purpose of electing officers as hereinafter provided and for the transaction of such other business as may come before the meeting. No prior notice of such meeting shall be required to be given to the Directors.

The Board of Directors by resolution may establish other dates, times and places for regular meetings of the Board.

6.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Chairman at the request of at least two Directors, or at the Chairman's discretion. These special meetings may be held at such reasonable times and places as the Chairman may determine and shall be limited to only those items of business described in the notice of such special meeting.

4

101 284 PAGE 313

- 6.3 Notices. No notice need be given for regular meetings held pursuant to Section 6.1. Notice of special meetings must be given at least two days prior to the time of the meeting and shall include all business to be considered at such meeting. Attendance at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice thereof.
- quorum. Directors may take any action without a meeting which is in their power by obtaining written approval of all of the Directors to such action.

ARTICLE VII. Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors.

- 7.1 General Powers. The Board of Directors shall have power to exercise all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to the Association and not reserved to the membership by provisions of these by-laws, the Articles of Incorporation and The White Rock Ranchettes Declaration.
- power, as more fully provided in the White Rock Ranchettes

 Declaration, to fix the amount of the annual assessment against

 each lot and give the owner subject thereto written notice of

 such assessment at least 30 days prior to the due date thereof,

 and to cause to be prepared a roster of property subject to

 assessment with assessments applicable to each such property and

 to keep such roster in the Association's office subject to

 imapection by any owner.

declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors vacant

you 284 moe 314

in the event such member shall be absent without excuse from two regular meetings of the Board of Directors. The Board shall have power to employ employees and officials and prescribe their duties and fix their compensation.

of the Board of Directors to: (a) cause to be kent a complete record of all of its acts and the proceedings of its meetings and to cause to be presented at the annual meeting of the members a report reviewing the husiness and affairs of the Association for the past year; (b) procure and maintain adequate insurance on property owned, leased or otherwise used by the Association; (c) cause, in its discretion, all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded with sufficient surety for the faithful performance of their official duties with the premium on such bond to be paid by the Association; (d) to perform all other responsibilities given to it by the White Rock Ranchettes Declaration; and (e) to perform all other powers and duties granted by law.

ARTICLE VIII. Committees.

The Board of Directors shall appoint such committees as it, in its discretion, deems necessary to assist in the operation of the affairs of the Association. Such committees shall exercise all powers and be subject to all duties which the Board of Directors shall give them. Committee members need not be members of the Board of Directors, but shall be members of the Association. A majority of the members of any committee shall fix its procedures.

ARTICLE IX. Officers.

- 9.1 Designation and Election. The principal officers of the Association shall be a Chairman of the Board, and a Vice Chairman, who shall be members of the Board, and a Secretary and Trezsurer who need not be members of the Board. The Board may appoint an Assistant Secretary or an Assistant Ttreasurer by resolution. The officers of the Association shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board.
- 9.2 Removal, Resignation and Vacancies. Any officer may be removed by an affirmative vote of the majority of the members of the Board of Directors. A vacancy in any office may be filled in the manner prescribed for regular elections with the officer elected filling the remainder of the term of the officer he replaces.
- 9/3 Chairman. The Chairman shall reside at all meetings of the Board and of the Association. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are usually vested in the President of an association.
- 9.4 <u>vice Chairman</u>. The vice Chairman shall take the place of the Chairman and perform his duties whenever the Chairman shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the Chairman nor the vice Chairman is able to act the Board will appoint some other board member to do so on an interim basis. He shall also perform such other duties as may be delegated to him by the Board of Directors.
 - 9.5 Secretary-Treasurer. The Secretary shall keep the

minutes of all meetings of the members of the Association and of the Board; shall serve notice of any such meetings; shall keep appropriate records of the names and addresses of the Association members; and shall perform other duties incident to the office of Secretary. The Treasurer shall have care and custody of and be responsible for all the funds of the Association and shall deposit such funds in the name of the Association in such banks or safe deposit companies as the Board may designate; shall make, sign and endorse in the name of the Association all checks, drafts, notes and other orders for the payment of money; and further shall perform all duties incident to the office which the Treasurer of an association normally performs.

9.6 <u>Delegation and Change of Duties</u>. In the event of absence or disability of any officer the Board of Directors may delegate during such absence or disability the powers or duties of such officer to any other officer or any Director.

ARTICLE X. Books, Records, Audit.

16.1 Inspection by Members. The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times during reasonable business hours be subject to inspection by any member or his authorized agent at the office of the Association.

IG 2 Audit. An annual audit shall be made by a Certificed Dublic Accountant previous to the date of each annual meeting, at which meeting such report shall be presented. A special audit which he made at any time upon order of the Board of Directors or upon a majority vote of the members at any regular or special meeting.

VOL 284 MGE 317

10.3 Execution of Instruments. All checks, drafts, notes, bonds, acceptances, deeds, leases, contracts, and other instruments shall be signed by such person, or persons, as may be designated by general or special resolution of the Board of Directors and, in the absence of any such general or special resolution applicable to any such instrument, then such instrument shall be signed by the Chairman.

ARTICLE XI. Amendment.

These By-Laws may be amended by two-thirds of the members voting in person or by proxy at any special or regular meeting provided that a quorum is present. Amendments may be proposed by the Board of Directors or by petition signed by at least 20 per cent of the members. A statement of any proposed amendment shall accompany the notice of any regular or special meeting at which such proposed amendment shall be voted upon. In the case of any conflict between the White kock Ranchettes Declaration and those by-Laws such Declaration will control.

LET FOR OTREON.

Papely at Dyechunes.

dar vi September REMEMBERED, TOST on His / 19th the anticrograph. Nature Public in and for and County and State, personally appeared the within public STATEON and PRINCIS STATEON.

the the identical individual & described in and tolus executed the within instrument and esecuted the same treely and voluntarily.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, Unaverlanded soring included altited

... my difficient seal the day good year last above women.

Agen V g Dayre, diamet karri de de es sic ton 9944 STATE OF OREGON
County of Deschutes
I beselv certify that the within instrument of writing was received for Record
the 29 day of 187 AD. 1976
at S. Mockett M., and recorded
in Back 1874 on Days 200 Record in Book 384 on Prope 369 Records
of ROSEMARY PATTERSON
County Clean
By Many Sefural Deputy